
 

 

VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

Saturday, October 31, 2015    
8:30 AM 

 
VILLAGE HALL BOARD ROOM 

40 E. CENTER AVE, LAKE BLUFF, IL 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
I.  Call to Order – Roll Call 
Trustee Steve Christensen, Chairman 
Trustee Mark Dewart, Member     
Trustee Barbara Ankenman, Member  
 
II. Approval of Minutes – April 6, 2015 
 
III. Non-Agenda Items and Visitors 
The Finance Committee allocates fifteen (15) minutes at this time for those individuals 
who would like the opportunity to address the Committee on any matter not listed on the 
agenda. 
 
IV.   Business Items 

1. Review of FY2015 Draft Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and Auditor 

Communications to the Board  

2. Discussion Regarding 2015 Property Tax Levy Estimates and Police Pension 

Actuarial Recommendation 

3. Consideration of an Amended and Restated Landscape Waste Composting 

Agreement with DK Organics 

4. Review of FY2017 and FY2018 Biennial Budget Calendar 

5. FY2016-17 Special Vehicle License Sticker Request from Lake Bluff Garden 

Club 

6. Report Concerning Personnel Manual Safe Harbor Provision  

 
V.    Informational Items 
 
 
VI.   Adjournment 
 
The Village of Lake Bluff is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990.  Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require 
certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this 
meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the facilities, are requested 
to contact R. Drew Irvin at 847-234-0774 or TDD number 847-234-2153 promptly to 
allow the Village of Lake Bluff to make reasonable accommodations. 



 

Page 1 of 3 

  
                                   

          
                                                

VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF - FINANCE COMMITTEE 
MINUTES OF MEETING – April 6, 2015 

 
 
I. Call to Order – Roll Call 
 

The Finance Committee of the Village of Lake Bluff was called to order on Monday, April 6, 
2015 at 6:00 PM in the Village Hall Board Room, 40 E. Center Ave., Lake Bluff, Illinois. 

 
Members Present: Trustee Steve Christensen, Chairman  
   Trustee Brian Rener, Member  
   Trustee Mark Dewart, Member 

    
Others Present:        Kathleen O’Hara, Village Board President  
   Barbara Ankenman, Village Clerk 
   William Meyer, Village Board Trustee 
   R. Drew Irvin, Village Administrator 
   Susan Griffin, Finance Director 
   Marlene Scheibl, Assistant Finance Director 

George Russell, Village Engineer 
Darren Olsen, Christopher B. Burke Engineering 

    
II. Approval of Minutes 
 

Member Dewart moved to approve the minutes of the March 9, 2015 meeting as presented; 
seconded by Member Rener and approved unanimously on a voice vote.   

 
III. Business Items 
 

      1. Presentation Regarding Storm Water Flooding Relief Studies 
     

As a result of the severe rain storm event experienced by the Village of Lake Bluff on May 12, 
2014, the Village engaged the services of Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd. to perform 
two separate drainage investigations of the two more significant flood impacted areas of the 
Village. The areas are the West Scranton Avenue Underpass and the Campbell Court 
Subdivision area.  Christopher Burke submitted initial draft reports to the Village for each of 
the two areas that were studied. 
 
Village Engineer Russell introduced Darren Olsen, the engineer from Christopher Burke who 
had been working on the studies since late summer. Mr. Olsen said the studies for both areas 
involved the same processes of data collection, hydrologic and hydraulic analysis, potential 
improvement projects, and the list of next steps to the projects.  He explained the definition of 
100, 10 and 2 year storm events as: 100-year storm event has a 1% chance of occurring in 
any given year, 10-year storm event has a 10% chance of occurring in any given year, and a 
2-year storm event has a 50% chance of occurring in any given year. The May 2014 rainfall 
event had 3-inches of rain fall over a 5.5 hour time period. This event was equivalent to a 10-
year recurrence storm event. As part of this study there were three drainage improvement 
alternatives developed to increase the level of flood protection for the West Scranton Avenue 
underpass. 
 

 Alternative 1:100-Year Storm Sewer from Viaduct to Lake Michigan: Under this 
alternative, a 48-inch diameter storm sewer would be installed from the Viaduct to 
Lake Michigan under North Avenue. This would provide a 100-year level of protection 
for the Viaduct and the engineer’s estimate of probable cost is $18.2M. 



Village of Lake Bluff Finance Committee Minutes – April 6, 2015 

Page 2 of 3 

 Alternative 2: 10-Year Storm Sewer from Viaduct to Lake Michigan: Under this 
alternative, a 30-inch diameter storm sewer would be installed from the Viaduct to  
Lake Michigan under North Avenue. This alternative would provide a 10-year level of 
protection for the Viaduct and the engineer’s estimate of probable cost is $3.4M. 

 Alternative 3: Stormwater Storage Upstream of Viaduct: Under this alternative, a 
storm water storage basin would be constructed upstream of the Viaduct to reduce 
the flowrate of water toward the Viaduct. This alternative would provide a 10-year 
level of protection for the Viaduct and the engineer’s estimate of probable cost is 
$1.6M. 
 

      Each alternative will require permitting through various regulatory agencies, with Alternatives       
1 and 2 requiring the most regulatory review due to the proximity of the proposed alternatives 
to Lake Michigan. Member Rener asked if Mr. Olsen had worked on projects which were 
funded with federal grants. Mr. Olsen said FEMA does provide funding but it is only available 
for disasters. Trustee Meyer asked if there is any capacity to increase flow of water to the 
ravine. Engineer Russell opined this would be overloading the rock in the ravine. Member 
Dewart said he is not in favor of Alternatives 1 or 2 because of the disruption, the water 
treatment required, and the required maintenance. Mr. Olsen said all three alternatives will 
have a maintenance requirement. VA Irvin asked what standards must be met by a new 
development. Engineer Russell responded they must meet standards for 100-year storm 
event. Chairman Christensen said he thought Alternative 3 was worth pursuing. President 
O’Hara said she thinks Alternative 3, possibly with additional retention storage, would be the 
alternative to pursue. President O’Hara asked what the time line would be. Mr. Olsen 
responded it would take 4-6 months for design, 2 months for IDOT, and then construction for 
a total of time line of 12-18 months. VA Irvin asked what the recommendation would be to 
improve Alternative 3. Mr. Olsen said it would be to look at storage and look at the upstream 
area. The consensus of the committee was to make a recommendation to the Village Board 
to pursue Alternative 3 with the addition of looking for additional retention storages. 
 
The Village experienced flooding at the area surrounding Campbell Court during the May 12, 
2014 storm event. Based on conversations with residents and Village staff, at least two 
structures were flooded from standing water in the rear yard entering the home through a 
window well or basement window. Several of the other properties reported high standing 
water in the rear yards. Four drainage improvement alternatives were developed by 
Christopher Burke to reduce the risk of future flooding of the study area. Alternatives 1A and 
1B propose to construct 4.0 acre-ft and 6.3 acre-ft storm water storage basins. Alternative 2 
proposed to construct a diversion channel approximately 7.1 acre-ft of new flood storage. 
Alternative 3 proposes to excavate the existing berm behind Campbell Court residences and 
use a portion of the material to fill backyards. Alternative 4 proposed to excavate 
approximately 2.5 acre-ft of new flood storage volume on the Tangley Oaks property. The 
engineer’s estimate of probable costs for the four alternatives ranged from $1,003,500 to 
$3,356,700. Member Dewart asked if the construction on the Great Lakes Naval Base had 
made the issue worse. Both Mr. Olsen and Engineer Russell responded that it hadn’t. VA 
Irvin stated that this project involves about 15 homes, 6 of those significantly impacted, 2 
homes taking water inside, and others have some water up to the foundation resulting in 
seepage. Engineer Russell said there would need to be access to get inside the affected 6-7 
homes to determine foundation levels. Member Rener asked if the road floods. Mr. Olsen 
responded the road does not flood since it is at a higher level. VA Irvin asked if Mr. Olsen had 
seen other developments with similar problems. Discussion ensued regarding the resolution 
of issues on private property. VA Irvin said the next step may be to show the homeowners 
some alternatives. Mr. Olsen said this would involve getting into their homes. President 
O’Hara said the Village could hold a workshop for these residents to share the results of the 
study. Mr. Olsen said he can provide a list of names of some reputable resources.  

 
IV. Next Meeting 
      The next meeting will be scheduled as needed. 

 
 
 



Village of Lake Bluff Finance Committee Minutes – April 6, 2015 

Page 3 of 3 

V. Adjournment 
Member Rener made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:45 PM, seconded by Member 
Dewart and all members voted aye. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

Marlene Scheibl 
Assistant Director of Finance 



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Finance Committee Chairman and Members 

  Kathleen O’Hara, Village President 

   

FROM:  R. Drew Irvin, Village Administrator 

Susan M. Griffin, Finance Director 

 

CC:  Marlene Scheibl, Assistant Finance Director 

 

DATE:  October 29, 2015 

 

SUBJECT: FY2014-15 Preliminary Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)  

 

The Preliminary CAFR for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2015 showing the financial 

position of the Village, the Auditor’s Communication to the Board including the 

Management Letter, and the Internal Control Report, are attached as part of this 

package.  Daniel Berg, Partner at Sikich, LLP, will be present at the Finance Committee 

meeting on October 31st to review the results of the audit and answer questions.  

Highlights of the document:     

 

 The Village received an unmodified opinion (previously referred to as an 

unqualified opinion) on these statements which is the most favorable opinion an 

entity can receive. 

 The General Fund fund balance increased by $1.107M as revenues exceeded 

expenditures by $1.789M but was offset by total other financing uses (transfers to 

other funds) of $682k.   

 The Village’s building permit revenues increased by $560k and the sales tax 

revenues rose by $277k which accounted for $837k of the revenue growth.  

Expenditures (including capital) were $853k less than last year predominately 

due to the carry forward of projects into FY16 and the reduction in improvement 

projects as grant funds diminished. 

 The General Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $6.15 million which 

represents 84% of the operating expenditures, exceeding the Village’s policy to 

maintain 50%, to provide expanded flexibility and cash flow during times of 

economic distress. 

 The Water fund had an operating loss of $27k and the net position decreased 

$86k after non-operating expenses of $59k this fiscal year. Last year the operating 

income was $56k and net position declined by $6k.  

 Water sales revenue as the main source decreased 8%or $98k from the prior 

fiscal year. The retail water rate change of $0.20 accounted for $33k increase in 

water sale but was offset by $131k reduction in revenue from the decline in 

consumption attributed to the milder spring and summer of 2014. 

 

Transmittal Letter and Management Discussion & Analysis (“MD&A”) 

The transmittal letter on pp. iv-ix presents a broader picture of the Village’s operations 

and the community as well as discussion about its finances. The MD&A located behind 

the “General Purpose External Financial Statements” on pages MD&A 1-10 is the source 

for a reader to focus on the Village’s overall financial condition and reasons for the 

changes.   

 

sgriffin
Typewritten Text
FC AGENDA ITEM IV-1 



FY2015 Annual Financial Statements  10-29-2015 

2 

Government-Wide Statements 

Beginning on pages 3-5 is the government-wide financial statements which consist of two 

main statements:  “Statement of Net Position” and “Statement of Activities”.  The 

Statement of Net Position “Governmental Activities” column combines the assets and 

liabilities for all of the Village funds except the Water Fund and the Police Pension Fund.  

The Water Fund is shown as a “Business-Type Activity” and also referred to as an 

Enterprise/Proprietary fund on other statements.  The Police Pension Fund is categorized 

as a Fiduciary Fund but is not reported in the government-wide statements because the 

funds are not available for any purpose other than Police Pension expenditures.  Police 

Pension Fund statements are on pages 15-16. 

 

On page 9 in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

the governmental funds are shown in three columns: one for the General and 

Redevelopment Funds and another labeled “Other Nonmajor Governmental Funds” 

which comprises all of the other governmental funds (not Water or Police Pension).   The 

fund balance number does not include capital assets, long term debt payable, net 

pension and OPEB obligations, and the loss on refunding bonds.  This amount is meant to 

provide a measure of the resources available for spending.  A reconciliation of the 

change in fund balance to the change in net position is on page 10. 

 

Detail on the General Fund revenues and expenditures with budget comparisons are on 

pages 61-67 and for the Redevelopment Fund on page 68.  The balance sheet for the 

individual non-major funds is shown on pages 69-71 and detail of revenues and 

expenditures for the non-major funds with budget comparisons are on pages 72-81. 

 

Finally, the statistical section in the back of the report provides 10 years data on the 

Village’s financial trends, revenue and debt capacity, and demographic, economic, 

and operating information.   

 

NEW:  GASB Statements 67 and 68 

This year some disclosure requirements of GASB 67 and 68 were required to be 

implemented. GASB 67 applies to financial reports issued by downstate police pension 

funds.  GASB 68 (required to be implemented next year) applies to local governments 

that participate in IMRF and/or sponsor downstate police pension funds. These 

pronouncements effectively separate financial reporting and funding considerations 

pertaining to the pension plans of state and local governments.  

 

In this CAFR on page 58 is the new “Schedule of Changes in the Employer’s Net Pension 

Liability and Related Ratios” which will prospectively provide 10-years of data about the 

Police Pension Fund.  Currently the Village’s net pension liability is $6.44 million.  Pursuant 

to GASB 68, next year the revised net pension liability figure will be reflected on the 

“Statement of Net Position” reducing the unrestricted net position of the Village.  Note 

that this reduction in unrestricted net position or possible negative net position is not a 

result of short-term actions of the Village or Pension Boards.  The intent of GASB 68 is to 

show the unfunded pension obligations to the face of the organization-wide financial 

statements.  Attached to this memo is a 3-page Q&A on these new standards. 

 

Auditor’s Communication to the Board/Management Letter  

The Auditor’s Communication to the Board is also attached.  This includes a description 

of the auditor’s responsibilities and noting any difficulties encountered in performing the 

audit or issues with management, which there were none.  As part of this package are 

comments on control deficiencies and suggestions on improving the Village’s internal 

control process and accounting system.     



The Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) 

recent pension standards substantially improve the accounting 

and financial reporting of public employee pensions by state 

and local governments. The new standards are:

• Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, 

which applies to financial reporting by most pension 

plans.

• Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Pensions, which applies to financial reporting by most 

governments that provide their employees with pension 

benefits.

Below are questions and answers that should help clarify 

common misperceptions about the new pension Statements.

DO THE NEW GASB STATEMENTS 
ESTABLISH REQUIREMENTS FOR HOW 
GOVERNMENTS SHOULD FUND THEIR 
PENSIONS?
No. In the past, the accounting and financial 

reporting standards were closely associated with the 

approach that many governments take to funding 

their benefits—that is, toward contributing sufficient 

resources to a defined benefit pension plan to finance 

benefit payments when they come due. Consequently, 

many governments have established funding policies 

based on the GASB’s standards. However, after 

reexamining the prior standards for pensions, the 

GASB concluded that approaches to funding are 

not necessarily the best approach to accounting for 

and reporting pension benefits. Therefore, the new 

Statements mark a definitive separation of accounting 

and financial reporting from funding.

WILL GOVERNMENTS HAVE TO PAY MORE 
EACH YEAR FOR PENSIONS BECAUSE OF 
THE GASB’S NEW STATEMENTS?
As just stated, the new pension Statements relate only 

to accounting and financial reporting, or how pension 

costs and obligations are measured and reported in 

external financial reports. How much governments 

actually contribute each year to a pension plan is a 

policy issue. Governments will likely report pension 

expense more quickly than under the prior standards; 

however, how or whether this information is used 

in assessing the amounts that governments will 

contribute to their pension plans is a public policy 

decision made by government officials.

DO GOVERNMENTS HAVE TO USE A 
MUNICIPAL BOND RATE FOR DISCOUNTING 
AS PUNISHMENT FOR NOT FULLY FUNDING 
THEIR PENSIONS?
No. The selection of an appropriate interest rate for 

discounting projected future benefit payments to their 

present value is based on what resources are projected 

to be used to make those payments: (1) assets of the plan 

that have been invested using an investment strategy to 

achieve the assumed long-term expected rate of return 

and their earnings; or (2) the general resources of the 

government employer. As long as the projected plan 

net position related to current employees and inactive 

employees exceeds the projected benefit payments for 

those employees, the long-term expected rate of return 

on investments will serve as the basis for discounting. 

This asset-based rate is appropriate because the earnings 

on the plan’s investments reduce the amount an 

employer will need to contribute to the plan.

GASB’S NEW PENSION STANDARDS: 
SETTING THE RECORD STRAIGHT

NOVEMBER 2013

1

2

Q&A

3



If a government reaches a crossover point—when 

projected benefit payments for current employees and 

inactive employees exceed projected plan net position 

related to those employees—then benefit payments 

projected to be made from that point forward will 

be discounted using a high-quality municipal bond 

interest rate. This liability-based rate is appropriate 

because the plan would no longer be expected to 

have sufficient assets related to those employees to 

produce investment income that will reduce how 

much an employer will have to contribute. The 

pension liability would then resemble the employer’s 

outstanding debt and other typical long-term 

liabilities.

However, it is true—all other factors being equal—

that the less well-funded a pension plan is, the more 

likely it will reach a crossover point and therefore have 

to discount some projected benefit payments using the 

municipal bond index rate. Under current economic 

conditions, municipal bond rates are lower than long-

term expected returns on pension plan investments. 

Using a lower discount rate increases the present value 

of projected benefit payments and, thereby, increases 

the size of the pension liability.

DO THE GASB’S STANDARDS ALLOW 
GOVERNMENTS TO MAKE THEIR 
LIABILITIES LOOK SMALLER BY 
USING A DISCOUNT RATE BASED ON 
UNREALISTICALLY HIGH EXPECTED RATES 
OF INVESTMENT RETURN?
No. The new Statements require that governments 

measure their pension liabilities using assumptions 

that are consistent with the standards of practice of the 

actuarial profession. If a government assumes a rate of 

return that is out of line with the actuarial standards, 

then it is misapplying the accounting standards rather 

than exploiting a loophole in the standards.

It is important to note that examining a pension 

plan’s investment return in any short-term period is 

not appropriate for drawing conclusions about the 

appropriateness of a government’s assumption about 

long-term investment earnings. The investment return 

in any given year or short-term period is likely to 

be either higher or lower than the assumed long-

term return. However, an appropriate long-term 

investment return assumption will reflect the expected 

average earnings over a long period, even though 

it may not be the same as actual earnings in any 

particular single or short-term period.

Governments will disclose information about their 

long-term investment return assumptions in the notes 

to the financial statements to assist in evaluating the 

reasonableness of those assumptions. The information 

will include a brief description of how the long-term 

expected rate of return was determined, significant 

methods and assumptions used for that purpose, the 

assumed asset allocation of the pension plan’s portfolio, 

and the long- term expected real rate of return for 

each major asset class.

IS THE DISCOUNT RATE THE MOST 
IMPORTANT FACTOR IN DETERMINING 
THE SIZE OF A GOVERNMENT’S PENSION 
LIABILITY?
The guidance put forth in the new Statements 

pertaining to the selection of a discount rate is 

certainly an important element but it is only one part 

of the determination. Discounting is one of the basic 

three steps involved in measuring a government’s 

total pension liability—projecting, discounting, and 

attributing. (The measurement process is more fully 

described in separate fact sheets about accounting 

and financial reporting by governments that provide 

pension benefits.)

The amount of a government’s pension liability also 

depends on a variety of other factors such as:

• The types of benefits a government has promised

• The length of service of employees and their 

salaries in the final years of their employment

• The life expectancy of retirees, which determines 

how long they will continue to receive benefits

• The inflation rate, which affects both salaries and 

rates of return on investments.

CAN THE INFORMATION REPORTED 
BY GOVERNMENTS UNDER THE NEW 
STATEMENTS BE COMPARED?
Yes. The comparability of the pension information 

that will result from the new Statements has been 

significantly improved. One of the features of the 

prior standards that many financial statement users 

have criticized is the variety of choices that employers 

could make when attributing the present value of 

NOVEMBER 2013 Q&A: GASB’S NEW PENSION STANDARDS: SETTING THE RECORD STRAIGHT

PAGE 2

5

4

6



projected benefit payments to past, present, and 

future periods. Governments previously were allowed 

to select from six different actuarial cost allocation 

methods, each of which could be applied in two 

ways—as a level dollar amount each year or as a 

level percentage of payroll in each year. In the view 

of many users, these options seriously diminished 

comparability. The new Statements, however, require 

that all governments use one type of actuarial cost 

method—called entry age—and apply it only as a level 

percentage of payroll.

It should be noted that, although governments are 

required to measure their pensions within the same 

parameters set forth in the standards, the resulting 

amounts will be different because of differences in 

the terms of the governments’ respective pension 

plans, differences in the demographics of the plan 

members, and differences in other relevant factors. In 

other words, because the governments are in different 

circumstances, their measurements will employ 

different assumptions.

It has been suggested that comparability would be 

greatly improved if all governments were required 

to use the same assumptions. However, taking a 

one-size-fits-all approach would ignore significant 

differences between governments—such as the mix of 

their investment portfolios and their actual earnings 

experience—that are relevant to determining the 

amount that governments are obligated to provide for 

pensions.

HAS THE GASB DETERMINED THAT STATE 
AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION PLANS 
ARE UNDERFUNDED BY $3 TRILLION?
No. The GASB has never conducted research 

regarding the extent to which pension plans are 

funded in the aggregate. Funding relates to a public 

policy issue that is beyond the scope of the GASB’s 

activities.

NOVEMBER 2013 Q&A: GASB’S NEW PENSION STANDARDS: SETTING THE RECORD STRAIGHT

PAGE 3

7

401 Merritt 7, PO Box 5116
Norwalk, Connecticut 06856-5116
T: 203.847.0700 | F: 203.849.9714

www.gasb.org

www.gasb.org


VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Chairman and Finance Committee Members 
  Kathleen O’Hara, Village President 
  R. Drew Irvin, Village Administrator 
 
CC:  Marlene Scheibl, Assistant Finance Director 
 
FROM:  Susan Griffin, Finance Director 
 
DATE:  October 28, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: 2015 Property Tax Levy Estimate and Police Pension Actuarial Valuation 
 
The attached packet includes supporting schedules estimating the 2015 Property Tax Levy and 
showing the breakdown by purpose with comparison to prior years.  It also includes an 
attachment from the Lake Bluff Library and the Police Pension Actuarial Valuation.   
 
Levy Calculation and Estimates – Attachment A  
 
Attachment A of the package shows the calculation of the tax levy based on the maximum non-
referendum tax levy which takes into account the CPI factor and estimated new construction. 
 
The CPI factor is 0.8% down from 1.5% last year, the EAV for 2015 is projected at 107% of the 
2014 amount and new construction is estimated at $2.976 million based on preliminary data from 
the Lake County Assessor. The new construction represents a portion of the Target development 
partly because the businesses opened in late July 2015. 
 
The estimated maximum amount (under the Property Tax Limitation Act - PTELL) that could be 
levied is $4,079,460 (including the Library portion) representing a 1.388% increase. While the 
Village is not legally limited by the tax caps since becoming home rule, the Village Board passed 
a resolution pledging to not increase the aggregate levy in excess of the amount that is allowed 
under the PTELL.   
 
Part III, of Attachment A details the new dollars received, the percentage increase, and the tax 
rate changes compared to the 2014 extension. Under the estimated levy, the Village would 
realize $43,717 and the Library $12,130 for a total of $55,847 new dollars while the blended tax 
rate would decrease from $.839 to $.795 per $100 of EAV.   
 
Below is a table showing the last 9 years’ total (Village and Library) tax extension and the current 
estimated levy. 

Tax 
Collection 
Yr 

Levy 
Year  

Tax 
Extension  

New 
Dollars 

Equalized 
Assessed 
Value 

Blended 
Tax Rate 

Inc/(Dec) 
in EAV 

Inc/(Dec) 
in Levy 

2016-17 1 2015 4,079,460 $55,847 513,171,972 .795 7.0% 2.54% 

2015-16 2014 4,023,613 $76,386 479,518,737 .839 (1.0)% 2.51% 

2014-15 2013 3,947,227 $96,685 484,263,512 .815 (4.4)% 2.51% 

2013-14 2012 3,850,542 $126,832 506,500,163 .673 (8.1)% 3.41% 

2012-13 2011 3,723,710 $80,146 551,254,954 .678 (5.9)% 2.20% 

2011-12 2010 3,643,564 $147,321 585,899,834 .624 (7.1)% 4.21% 

2010-11 2009 3,496,243 $49,014 630,953,018 .556 (2.6)% 1.42% 

2009-10  2008 3,447,229 $194,015 647,740,985 .532 3.2% 5.96% 

2008-09 2007 3,253,214 $166,276 627,765,760 .518 9.8% 5.39% 

2007-08 2006 3,086,938 $174,830 571,694,190 .540 10.1% 6.00% 

                                            
1 Year 2015 Levy, EAV, rate and percentage changes are estimates. 

sgriffin
Typewritten Text
FC AGENDA ITEM #2



2015 Property Tax Levy Information  October 28, 2015  

Page 2 

Special Levies and Levy Breakdown by Fund/Purpose – Attachments B & C   
 
Attachment B shows the breakdown of the levy by fund/purpose with a comparison to previous 
years.  The shaded column shows the effect of the 2015 levy on the Village funds. Of the total 
new dollars projected under this allocation scenario, the General fund would realize $26,527 or 
1.22% increase over the 2014 extension.  
 
The Police Pension Board met on October 15th to discuss the Fund’s levy requirement and is 
requesting a levy consistent with the actuary’s recommendation. The 2015 actuarial valuation, 
prepared by the actuarial firm of MWM Consulting, calculates a recommended minimum Village 
contribution of $640,595 up 1.5% from the contribution last year of $640,595. The actuarial 
recommended levy is based on the Entry Age Normal funding method and more conservative 
assumptions than the minimum levy required by statute. The recommended amount is designed 
to reduce the unfunded liability each year, to produce a levy that is about 51.5% of covered 
payroll, and to achieve at least 90% funding by 2040 (as required by law.) The plan is 57.6% 
funded as of May 1, 2015 up from 53.7% at May 1, 2014. The complete actuarial valuation report 
is Attachment C. 
 
The Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund and Social Security levy allocations are based on a 
projection of the costs for FY2016-17 less usage of some of the excess fund balance reserves.  
The fiscal year 2014-15 IMRF expenditures decreased 3.4% due to a reduction in the 2015 rate 
and the reduction in staff from 38 to 35 from dispatch consolidation. The Social Security FY2014-
15 expenditures increased by 1% due to the annual rise in the FICA taxable salary maximum. 
These funds have unreserved fund balances at the end of fiscal year 2015 of $214 and $176 
thousand, respectively.  
 
Library Property Tax Levy – Attachment D 
 
The Library Board has not formally submitted its levy request yet; so this report reflects a levy 
amount of $886,048 which represents a 1.388% increase over the 2014 tax extension and is the 
amount under the PTELL. However, Attachment D outlines the estimated FY2016-17 budget 
requiring a levy of $901,008 which is 3.1% higher than 2014. Library Director Eric Bailey and two 
Library Board members will be in attendance at the Finance Committee meeting.   
 
Abatement of both the 2011 Refunding Bonds and 2012 Refunding Bonds 
 
As has been past practice, this levy does not include an amount for these bond payments. This 
debt requires an abatement ordinance to request that the County NOT levy this tax because 
Ordinances 2011-19 and 2012-13 are filed with the County. These ordinances require the County 
tax extension office to levy the annual bond payment amount unless the Village abates the levy 
each year. This abatement ordinance will be submitted to the Board for approval in conjunction 
with the levy ordinance. 
 
General Information and Tax Levy Legal Adoption Requirements  
 
The Village is required by Statute to prepare a resolution estimating the property tax levy which 
will be on the November 9th agenda. The first reading of the Levy Ordinance, Debt Abatement 
Ordinance, and Public Hearing will be held on November 23rd with final adoption of the levy on 
December 14th.  The levy must be filed with the County Clerk by the last Tuesday in December.   
   
Truth-In-Taxation Law Compliance Is Not Required 
 
The truth in taxation law requires that the corporate authorities comply with specific publication 
and public hearing requirements if the aggregate tax levy is estimated to be more than 105% of 
the amount extended the prior year.  At this time, the Village and the Library levies are in 
compliance with the tax cap amount, therefore, compliance with the provisions of this law is not 
required.  However, the Village will hold a public hearing on the budget at the November 23rd 
Board meeting in accordance with past practice.  The public hearing notice will be posted on the 



2015 Property Tax Levy Information  October 28, 2015  

Page 3 

Village Hall bulletin board, the website, and printed in the November 12th edition of the Lake 
Forester. 

 



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 28-Oct-15

2015 PROPERTY TAX LEVY PRELIMINARY LEVY

I.  Calculation of 2015 Estimated EAV & Historical Data

2015

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Estimated

Village EAV $561,955,086 527,046,786 484,191,545 463,295,419 458,754,118 $491,784,414

Sanctuary EAV $23,944,748 24,208,168 22,308,618 20,968,093 20,764,619 $21,387,558

  Total Village EAV $585,899,834 $551,254,954 $506,500,163 $484,263,512 $479,518,737 $513,171,972

Shield's Township EAV $2,223,203,731 $2,060,162,776 $1,926,914,557 $1,781,099,584 $1,690,026,662 $1,639,325,862

Village % of Township 26.35% 26.76% 26.29% 27.19% 28.37% 31.30%

New Construction Value $3,063,550 $3,106,704 $967,961 $2,877,031 $1,378,812 $2,976,000

Annexed Property

Property Tax Extension $3,506,600 $3,573,377 $3,694,381 $3,789,757 $3,862,737

Sanctuary Extension $136,964 $150,333 $156,160 $157,470 $160,876

   Total Village Extension $3,643,564 $3,723,710 $3,850,542 $3,947,227 $4,023,613 $0

Tax Rate 0.624 0.678 0.763 0.818 0.842 0.000

Sanctuary Rate 0.572 0.621 0.700 0.751 0.775 0.000

II.  Calculation of Maximum Tax Levy

A. Tax Cap Calculation - PTELL MAXIMUM YEAR 2015 ESTIMATE

CPI Factor 0.8% 0.80%

STEP 1:  Prior year Extension less debt * CPI factor

2014 Extension $4,023,613 $4,055,802

$510,195,972

Maximum Tax Rate with CPI (Step 1 divided by Step 2) 0.7949 PTELL Limiting Rate

STEP 3:  Rate * Total EAV = Total levy (less debt)

$4,079,460 MAXIMUM 1.388% % Increase

STEP 4: Total Maximum Levy $4,079,460 1.388% % Increase

STEP 5:  Add G.O. Debt Payments ABATED $0

STEP 6:  Total Maximum Levy & Tax Rate $4,079,460 0.7949

III.  Comparison 2014 & 2015 Levy - VILLAGE 

A. PTELL Maximum 2014 Tax Ext 2015 Tax Max 2015 Estimate $ Change % Change

Levy Before Debt $3,149,695 $3,193,412 $3,193,412 $43,717 1.388%

Debt Levy $0 $0 $0

  Abatement $0 $0 $0

Total Levy $3,149,695 $3,193,412 $3,193,412 $43,717 1.388%

STEP 2: Tax Rate Maximum=New Extension (less debt) 

Divided by Estimated EAV less New Construction

sgriffin
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



IV.  Library Levy Estimates

2014 Extension 2015 Max 2015 Estimate $ Increase % Change

Amount Allowed per Tax Cap $873,918 $886,048 $886,048 $12,130 1.388%

TOTAL LEVY $4,023,613 $4,079,460 $4,079,460 $55,847 1.388%



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF

COMPARISON OF PROPERTY TAX LEVIES 2011-2015

PROPERTY PROPERTY PROPERTY PROPERTY PROPERTY

TAX TAX TAX TAX TAX $ INC/(DEC) % INC/(DEC) % of Total

FUND TITLE 2011 EXT 2012 EXT 2013 EXT 2014 EXT 2015 EXT Levy

(FY12-13) (FY13-14) (FY14-15) (FY15-16) (FY16-17)

01 General Fund $1,932,133 $2,087,921 $2,160,295 $2,169,085 $2,195,612 $26,527 1.22% 49.53%

  Debt Service Abatement $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 N/A 0.00%

General Fund Total Tax $1,932,133 $2,087,921 $2,160,295 $2,169,085 $2,195,612 $26,527 1.22% 49.53%

07 IL Municipal Retirement 192,939 172,210 150,122 150,003 152,000 $1,997 1.33% 7.47%

14 Social Security Fund 242,552 197,535 179,177 190,004 195,700 $5,696 3.00% 8.56%

16 Liability Insurance Fund 0 0 0 0 0 $0 N/A 0.00%

62 Police Pension Fund 551,255 557,150 605,329 640,603 650,100 $9,497 1.48% 11.68%

Subtotal-Village $2,918,879 $3,014,816 $3,094,923 $3,149,695 $3,193,412 $43,717 1.39% 77.24%

80 Library Fund 744,267 763,094 777,654 797,398 807,598 $10,200 1.28% 20.90%

80 Library IMRF 32,887 40,704 41,925 42,975 44,050 $1,075 2.50% 1.07%

80 Library FICA 27,677 31,927 32,725 33,545 34,400 $855 2.55% 0.78%

39 1998 G.O. Bond & Interest 0 0 0 0 0 $0 N/A 0.00%

Library $804,831 $835,725 $852,304 $873,918 $886,048 $12,130 1.39% 22.76%

TOTAL EXTENSION/LEVY $3,723,710 $3,850,541 $3,947,227 $4,023,613 $4,079,460 $55,847 1.39% 100.00%

Residential property represents 90.6% of the total EAV of the Village. 

Commercial, industrial, farm and railroad property combined EAV represents 9.4%.

2014 Extension to 2015 Levy

 $100
 $200
 $300
 $400
 $500
 $600
 $700
 $800
 $900

 $1,000
 $1,100
 $1,200
 $1,300
 $1,400
 $1,500
 $1,600
 $1,700
 $1,800
 $1,900
 $2,000
 $2,100
 $2,200
 $2,300
 $2,400

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Th
o

u
sa

n
d

s Property Tax Extensions by Fund

General Fund IL Municipal Retirement Social Security Fund Police Pension Fund

sgriffin
Typewritten Text

sgriffin
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B

sgriffin
Typewritten Text



sgriffin
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C

















































Tax Levy for FY2016-2017 

 

In reviewing the library’s levy request I considered necessary expenses, known 

contracts, and likely expenses for each budget line. I am confident in the numbers I am passing 

along for your consideration, though new developments might effect the final numbers.  

 

NEW EXPENSES 

 

Upcoming Capital Expenses to be Paid from Reserve 

 

 $2,000 for repair of the Spruth Room stair well; 

 $2,000 for roof and beam repair work; 

 $30,000 for repair and updating of the Library’s HVAC system, and; 

 $25,000 for replacement of the juvenile fiction and nonfiction shelving. 

_________________ 

A total of: $59,000 in capital expenses from reserve. 

 

Regular Budget for FY 2016-2017 

 

 Need for a more comprehensive HVAC maintenance plan to avoid future problems; 

 The average staff salary remains low enough to be a disincentive for retention (average 

salary for paraprofessionals remains, for instance, 9% below the average starting salary 

at neighboring libraries); 

 The State of Illinois is in flux, and approximately $6,000 of usually reliable funding cannot 

be relied upon; 

 Replacement and repair for aging electronic equipment; 

 Need to adequately support a now updated phone system, and; 

 The need to maintain a reserve equivalent to roughly 50% of the annual operating 

budget. 

 _________________ 

A total of: $42,750 in new expenses. 

 

 

 

sgriffin
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D



BUDGET REDUCTIONS 

 The Space Needs study has been completed; 

 The Local Area Network (LAN) maintenance contract for the library was favorably finalized 

last year; 

 Improved efficiency has lowered the amount needed for office and technical supplies, 

and; 

 Increased comfort with the now-fully-implemented Sierra Integrated Library System is 

allowing for time and cost savings. 

_________________ 

A total of: $15,500 in budget reductions. 

  

Net increase in expenses: $27,250. 

SUMMARY 

A total of $59,000 would be added to the budget from reserve to cover capital expenses. 

Another $32,300 can be relied on from fines, photocopy charges, and misc. revenue. This would 

mean a levy of $901,008, an increase in 3.1% from the previous year. While this is higher than 

the 1.388% PTELL increase, a reasonable budget includes expenses that that increase would not 

cover.  

The levy represents 96.5% of the library’s annual operating revenue and is the only revenue 

source that the library can truly exercise control over. The library has only exceeded the PTELL 

rate once before, in dealing with a complete failure of the heating and cooling system for the 

building, and has with that exception been at or below the PTELL recommendation.   

Regards, 

Eric Scott Bailey 

 

 



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
 

Memorandum 
 
To:  Chair Steve Christensen and Finance Committee Members 
  Village Board of Trustees 
   
From:  Drew Irvin, Village Administrator  

Jake Terlap, Public Works Superintendent 
 
Date:  October 27, 2015 
 
Subject: Consideration of an Amendment and Restatement of the Landscape Waste Composting 

Agreement between the Village of Lake Bluff and DK Organics, LLC 
 
Since 1994 the Village has contracted with DK Organics of Lake Bluff, Illinois (“DK”) for the processing of all 
yard waste delivered to the Public Works Center by Village crews and residents (“Agreement”).  In November 
of 2008 the Village reviewed and renewed the Agreement with DK and again extended the Agreement on 
November 25, 2013 for a period of 2 years. As has been the case for many years, the Village and DK’s 
partnership continues to be mutually beneficial in that the Village reduces its fees for household waste 
collection, secures quality materials for Village and resident landscape needs, and furthers the Village’s 
sustainability efforts (reducing carbon footprint, locally recycling yard waste, etc.), while DK secures an 
overflow location for their operations which are largely done off the Village property.  Over the last several 
months Village Staff has researched alternative service providers and, largely due to logistics and value, is again 
recommending extending the Village’s Agreement with DK.  Specifically, Village staff recommends extending 
the contract with DK Organics for a period of 3 years maintaining the terms of the Agreement the same with the 
following suggested changes: 

 Move to a flat fee of $29,500/year with one payment versus paying per cubic yard.  The attached graphic 
shows that this modification should provide for a reduction in costs for the Village using current 
costs/trend analysis; 

 DK will provide Village access to high quality compost materials (“super fines” screened compost) in 
addition to mulch;  

 DK and the Village will share the installation fees (not to exceed $3,000) for a gate to provide added site 
security; 

 DK has agreed to accept food scrap waste at their site in North Chicago for no additional charge to 
Village, should the Village initiate a food scrap collection program with Groot; and 

 Add a 120-day escape clause for the Village. 
Staff has made progress with our negotiations with DK and has reached tentative agreement on the rate/fees and 
term, and expects the other Village suggested Agreement changes will be achieved.  Village Staff will be in 
attendance at the meeting to answer questions from the Committee. 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

1. Draft Amendment and Restatement of the Landscape Waste Composting Agreement between the 
Village of Lake Bluff and DK Organics, LLC; and 

2. Graph of the Village Payments to DK Organics, LLC for the period FY1999 to FY2015. 
 

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: IV3

cweatherall
Typewritten Text



cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1





















$14,321

$18,878
$18,037

$25,572
$26,440

$30,933

$35,257

$30,646

$29,150

$37,276

$43,707

$41,060 $41,840

$46,657

$39,104

$36,995 $37,197

$29,500  $29,500 

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

$35,000

$40,000

$45,000

$50,000

FY1999 FY2000 FY2001 FY2002 FY2003 FY2004 FY2005 FY2006 FY2007 FY2008 FY2009 FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

Village Payments to DK Organics for the Period  FY1999 to FY2015 for 
Yardwaste/Organic 

Material Processing Services (average $32,534/Year)

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 2

cweatherall
Typewritten Text



 
10/28/2015 

 
November 9, 2015 Budget Worksheets available on the P: drive  

 
December 14, 2015 Finance Director prepares personnel expenditures and Special 

Revenue, & Pension Fund budgets. 
 

December 14, 2015 Departmental budget requests, goals and objectives, and 
personnel & capital projections returned to Finance 
 

December 15-22, 2015 
 

Finance Director assembles preliminary budget  

January 4-11, 2016 Departmental Budget Discussions 

January 11, 2016 
Monday 6:00 PM 
 
 

Finance Committee Meeting  
     Review Comprehensive Fee Schedule 
     Review Financial & Budgetary Policies 
     Review Strategic Plan Initiatives 
     Review External Organization Funding Requests  
 

February 10, 2016 Preliminary Budget Delivered to Board Members 
 

February 13, 2016  
Saturday, 8:30 AM 

Finance Committee Meeting  
     Review Capital Improvement Projects  
     Review Multi-Year Capital Plan – All Funds     
      

February 20, 2016 
Saturday, 8:30 AM 
 

Finance Committee Meeting 
     Review General Fund Operating Budget 
     Review Non-Major Governmental Funds & Police Pension 
     Review Water Operating Budget & Rate Schedules 
 

March 2, 2016 Tentative budget delivered to Board members 

March 3, 2016 Publication of public hearing notice (must be published <14 days 
>1 week before hearing) 

 
March 14, 2016 

 
Tentative budget available for public inspection (10 days prior to 

passage) 

March 14, 2016 Public Hearing on Proposed Tentative Budget 
First Reading of Tentative Biennial Budget 
 

March 28, 2016 Final approval and adoption of Budget Ordinance  

 
By law the Budget must be approved before May 1, 2016. 

FY 2017-18 BIENNIAL BUDGET TIMETABLE 

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: IV4



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Chairman and Finance Committee Members 
  Kathleen O’Hara, Village President 
  R. Drew Irvin, Village Administrator 
 
CC:  Marlene Scheibl, Assistant Finance Director 
 
FROM:  Susan Griffin, Finance Director 
 
DATE:  October 28, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Special Vehicle Sticker Program Request – Lake Bluff Garden Club 

 
In February 2012 the Village Board approved a resolution establishing a Vehicle Sticker Design and 
Fundraising Program pursuant to a request from the Alliance for Excellence Foundation.  Attached is the 
policy which allows for recognition of significant organizational milestones for non-profit organizations.  
Since the approval of this program the Alliance for Excellence, the Lake Bluff History Museum, and the 
Lake Bluff-Lake Forest Kiwanis Club have all been approved to issue special stickers at a cost of $15 above 
the price of the regular vehicle sticker fee. 
 
In March 2015 the Lake Bluff Garden Club requested the opportunity to issue the special vehicle sticker for 
residents for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2016 to acknowledge the 100th anniversary of the Club. Ms. 
Daun Roth has been provided the information regarding this program. At this time the Village has not 
received any additional requests to participate in the vehicle sticker fundraising program for the upcoming 
fiscal year.   
 
The program has been a benefit to the selected organizations with total donations ranging from $5,997 to 
$3,595 and administration has required minimal staff effort.  
 
 
As always, please feel free to contact me with any questions or comments. 

 

sgriffin
Typewritten Text
AGENDA ITEM 4

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: IV5









cweatherall
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: IV6




